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V.
MICHAEL O. LEAVITT, in his official capacity as

Secretary of the U.S. Department of Health and
Human Services;

and '
ANDREW C. VON ESCHENBACH, M.D., in his official SUMMONS
capacity as Commissioner of the DEFENDANT(S).

Food and Drug Administration

A lawsuit has been filed against you.

Within _60___ days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you received it), you

must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached (& complaint O amended complaint
[J counterclaim O cross-claim or a motion under Rule 12 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. The answer
or motion must be served on the plaintiff”s attorney, _ HOGAN & HARTSON, LLP , whose address is

1999 Avenue of the Stars, #1400, Los Angeles, CA 90067 . Ifyou fail to do so,

judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief demanded in the complaint. You also must file
your answer or motion with the court.

Clerk, U.S. District Court

Dated: By: L
Deputy Clerk ..
(Seal of the Court)

[Use 60 days if the defendant is the United States or a United Stales agency, or is an officer or employee of the United States. Allowed
60 days by Rule 12(aj(3)].
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Attorneys for Plaintiff
VALEANT PHARMACEUTICALS INTERNATIONAL

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT |

CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

SOUTHERN DIVISION
| VALEANT PHARMACEUTICALS | Case No. SACV08-00449 AG (AGRx)
INTERNATIONAL
Plaintiff VALEANT’S VERIFIED
v, COMPLAINT

MICHAEL O. LEAVITT,

Secretary of the U.S. Department of
Health and Human Services,

and

ANDREW C. VON ESCHENBACH,
M.D., in his official capacity as
Commissioner of the Food and

Drug Administration,
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Plaintiff Valeant Pharmaceuticals (“Valeant™), by its undersigned counsel,
hereby brings this Verified Complaint against Defendants Michael O. Leavitt, in his
official capacity as Secretary of the United States Department of Health and Human |
Services (“HHS”) and Andrew C. von Eschenbach, M.D., in his official bapacity as

Commissioner of the JJited Statss Eord gnd Rue, Administriion SIS, a9dye

alleges as follows:

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

L. This action is brought by Valeant under the Administrative Procedure
Act (*APA”) to hold unlawful as arbitrary, capricious, and an abuse of discretion,
and to set aside, the FDA’s final approval of Spear Pharmaceutical’s (“Spear’s™)
generic version of Valeant’s pioneer drug product, EFUDEX® (fluorouracil) 5%
Cream (“Efudex Cream”). |

2. Valeant’s Efudex Cream is the top-selling topical treatment for patients
with a form of skin cancer called “superficial basal cell carcinoma” (“sBCC”),
having achieved a 93% success rate in clinical trials for sBCC and having earned the
confidence of dermatologists throughout the United States. Efudex Cream is also
approved to treat a form of sun-damaged skin called “actinic keratosis” (“AK").

3. On April 11, 2008, the FDA approved Abbreviated New Drug
Application No. 77-524 (“ANDA?”) for a 5% fluorouracil cream sponsored by Spear
and sought to be promoted as a generic version of Efudex Cream (ANDA No. 77-

5224). As an ANDA-approved generic, Spear may now promote its cream to treat

~ both actinic keratoses and superficial basal cell carcinoma — this despite the fact that

Spear’s cream has never been studied in a single cancer patient.

2 Valeant’s Verified Complaint
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4. On or about April 23, 2008, Spear listed its generic product with one or

more of the privately administered drug pricing compendia, indicating that Spear
intends to begin marketing its product imminently.
5. The FDA, in approving Spear’s ANDA, engaged in arbitrary and

capricious conduct, abused its discretion, and failed to engage in reasoned decision-

making as demoR@ar8PBy kORALE hE-RBwirRoRBERSL(1) TirdPHASE60ed Rage

own rules; (2) the FDA relied on false and contradictory assertions; and (3) the FDA

failed to consider or address relevant evidence.

PARTIES

6. Plaintiff Valeant is a corporation organized and existing under the laws
of the state of Delaware, with its principal place of business at One Enterprise, Aliso
Viejo, California, 92656. Valeant is a specialty pharmaceutical company that
develops a broad range of products to treat neurological, dermatological, and
infectious diseases and disdrders.

7. Defendant Michael O. Leavitt is the Secretary of the HHS and is
responsible for administering and enforcing the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic
Act, 21 U.S.C. § 321, et seq. (‘FDCA”). He is being sued in his official capacity.
Defendant Leavitt maintains an office at 200 Independence Avenue, S.W.,
Washington, D.C., 20201.

8. Defendant Andrew C. von Eschenbach, M.D. is the Commissioner of
the FDA, an administrative agency within HHS, and is responsible for supervising

the its activities. He is being sued in his official capacity. Defendant von

‘Eschenbach has been delegated the authority to administer the drug approval

provisions of the FDCA. He maintains offices at 5600 Fishers Lane, Rockville,
Maryland 20857, and at 200 C Street, S.W., Washington, D.C. 20204.

3 Valeant’s Verified Complaint
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JURISDICTION AND VENUE
9. Jurisdiction in this Court is based on 28 U.S.C. § 1331 in that this is a
civil action arising under the laws of the United States; the APA, 5 U.S.C. § 551 et
seq. in which Valeant is seeking judicial review of an agency action from which it

has suffered a legal wrong, has been adversely affected, and has been aggrieved; 28

U.S.C. § 1361 ifedRatRiE Gy-8RASH0R M RmPepansifider ofithe ViikidBiatesHage

perform his duty; and 28 U.S.C. §§ 2201-2202 (declaratory judgment) in that there
exists between Valeant and the Defendants an actual, justiciable controversy as to
which Valeant requires a declaration of its rights by this Court, as well as temporary,
preliminary, and permanent injunctive relief to prohibit the Defendants from
violating laws and regulations.

10.  Venue is proper in this Court under 28 U.S.C. § 1391(e), as Valeant

resides in this judicial district.

BACKGROUND

11. Valeant manufactures and markets Efudex Cream, an FDA-approved
“innovator” drug (sometimes referred to as a “pioneer,” “brand-name” or “branded”
drug). The active ingredient in Efudex is fluorouracil, a chemotherapy agent.

12. Efudex Cream is used to treat superficial basal cell carcinoma, among
the most common forms of cancer in humans. Ineffectively treated, sBCC could
lead to further growth into other parts of the skin, and in some instances, metastasize
to nearby parts of the body. Efudex Cream is also used to topically treat multiple
actinic keratoses, which are scalings or crustings of the skin caused primarily by
overexposure to the sun.

13.  Efudex Cream was first approved by the FDA over 30 years ago for the

| treatment of sSBCC. To this day, Efudex Cream remains the only topical fluorouracil

4 Valeant’s Verified Complaint
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product on the market that has been demonstrated to be safe and effective for the
treatment of this condition,

14.  On December 22, 2004, Spear, a drug company primarily producing
generic dermatological products, filed its ANDA seeking approval of a generic
version of Valeant’s Efudex Cream. Under relevant portions of the FDCA, parties
are permitted to FREAIIBAY-0F horiristloR to RAHBEANY distitfiie ardHeSforiage
of FDA-approved innovator drugs, such as Efudex Cream.

15. In order for the FDA to approve an ANDA, the applicant must prove
that its generic is “bioequivalent” to the innovator drug. Clinical testing on which
bioequivalence is established shall be conducted “using the most accurate, sensitive,
and reproducible approach available.” 21 C.F.R. § 320.24(a).

16. The FDA remarkably concluded that as between AK (sun-damaged
skin) and sBCC (cancer), clinical testing in AK provided the “most accurate,
sensitive, and reproducible approach available” to determine the bicequivalence of
Spear’s product to Valeant’s Efudex cream for the treatment of sSBCC.

17. In 2004, Valeant filed a Citizen’s Petition (“Petition™) urging the FDA
to require that any proposed Efudex generic should first be tested on cancer patients,
as success of the drug in treating sun-damaged skin does not provide evidence that
the cream delivers the requisite amount of active ingredient to cancerous skin cells.
Valeant submitted scientific evidence showing, among other things, that it is
impossible to determine the bioequivalence of such a product based simply upon its
effect on sun-damaged skin. In the years that followed, Valeant supplemented its
Petition with statements from several experts, as well as other scientific and medical
evidence supporting its position.

18. The FDA approved Spear’s ANDA on April 11, 2008. On the same
date, the FDA denied Valeant’s Petition arid approved Spear’s ANDA to market a

generic version of Efudex Cream as a treatment for sBCC and AK. In doing so, the

5 Valeant’s Verified Complaint
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FDA completely ignored the statements of Valeant’s three medical experts and
offered a decision that reflects a lack of reasoned decisioﬁ-making and is filled with
internal contradictions,

19. The FDA’s approval of Spear’s generic product required a
determination that Spear’s product was “bioequivalent” to Valeant’s Efudex Cream.

20.  TheCPEAS 081cBBAhACHER walCreqaRd to PIEVOHiqiifledtroe
through, among other things, clinical trialé (“in vivo” or “in the body” testing).
However, the FDA’s own rules require that c'linical testing on which bioequivalence
is established must be conducted “using the most accurate, sensitive, and
reproducible approach available.”

21. The FDA concluded that, as between tests on cancer (sBCC) patients
and tests on individuals with sun-damaged skin (AK), clinical testing on individuals
with sun-damaged skin (AK) provided the “most accurate, sensitive, and
reproducible approach available” to determine the bioequivalence of Spear’s
product tb Valeant’s Efudex Cream for the treating cancer.

22.  Several statements offered by the FDA as the basis for its decision to
focus on AK testing, and for denying Valeant’s petition, are either false or
contradict other statements made by the FDA.

23. In addition to making contradictory statements in its Response to
Valeant’s Petition, the FDA failed to consider significant and relevant information
and expert statements bearing on the accuracy, sensitivity, and reproducibility of the
bioequivalence testing that it relied upon in connection with Spear’s ANDA.

24.  Specifically, the FDA failed to acknowledge or consider any of the
following important and relevant information provided by Valeant’s experts:

25.  Howard Maibach, M.D., a world renowned academic dermatologist and
professor at University of California San Francisco School of Medicine, showed that

AK clinical studies are extremely variable and subjective, depend almost entirely on

6 Valeant’s Verified Complaint
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| physician observation, and “appear to be unreliable.” Dr, Maibach further

concluded that such a comparative clinical study carried out on AK patients could
not support a finding of bioequivalence in another indication such as sBCC.

26. Khanh P. Tran, M.D., a Board-certified dennatopafhologist, showed,
using histopathologic slides,'that AKX and sBCC differ significantly in the cells they

| first affect, the @A 8- WHRMARH GEVERhoROBHITS A thétell OMABAIEsprEaye

into.

27.  Dennis M. Fisher, M.D., an expert statistician, as well as a physician,
showed in statistical terms the difficulty of using information about a topical drug’s
performance on individuals with sun-damaged skin to pfedict its effectiveness in

treating patients with skin cancer.

CAUSE OF ACTION

(Administrative Procedure Act: |
Violation of the FDCA and Applicable Regulatlons)

28. Valeant realleges, reasserts, and incorporates by reference herein each
of the allegations contained in patagraphs 1 through 27 of the Complaint, as though
set forth fully herein,

29. The FDA’s approval of the ANDA for the generic Efudex Cream was
unlawful and in violation of the FDCA and the agency’s own regulations.

30.. "The FDA’s approval of the ANDA constitutes final agency action for
which Valeant has no other adequate remedy within the meaning of 5 U.S.C. § 704.

31. The FDA’s approval of the ANDA was not in accordance with federal
law and therefore violates 5 U.S.C. § 706(2)(A).

32. The FDA'’s approval of the ANDA constitutes agency action in excess
of statutory jurisdiction, authority, or limitations, or short of statutory right, in
violation of 5 U.S.C. § 706(2)(C).

7 Valeant’s Verified Complaint
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33. Valeant will be irreparably harmed if the Defendants are not required to

suspend the FDA’s approval of the ANDA because the purported generic was

approved in violation of federal law.

34, There

is no mechanism by which Valeant can be made whole for the

injury that would result from the FDA’s approval of the ANDA if the approval is

not suspended. GRiA8FHPENIPRGEGD M adéefate POmEAG Ut aw FBRsh19625f AR Inidiage |

nature of the harm.

35. The intent of Congress will be served by an Order directing the FDA to

suspend its approval of the ANDA. In addition, the public interest will be served by

such an Order.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Valeant requests that this Court enter the following:
A. A declaratory judgment pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 2201(a) in Valeant’s

favor and against the Defendants, by:

@

(i1)

(iii)

Declaring that the FDA’s action, findings, and conclusion to
approve ANDA No. 77-524 were unlawful and in violation of
the FDCA; | |

Declaring that the FDA’s action, findings, and conclusion to
approve ANDA No. 77-524 were arbitrary, capricious, and an
abuse of the FDA’s discretion; -

Declaring that the FDA’s approval of ANDA No. 77-524 is

invalid;

NNALA - DBBEE9/00003% - 384455 vl
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B.  An Order granting Valeant a temporary, preliminary, and permanent
injunction that requires the FDA to suspend its approval of ANDA No. 77-524;
C.  An award to Valeant of its costs, fees, and expenses; and

D.  Anaward of such other and further relief as justice and its cause require.

Dated: April 23; 2008.08.cv-00449-AG-AGR  Document1  Filed 04/25/2008 Page ]
Respectfully submitted,

By :Dﬁv‘/\f CZQ, Co—

Richard de Bodo (State Bar No. 12849 9g
J. Drew Diamond éState Bar No, afﬁ' )
David G. Chang (State Bar No. 241923)
HOGAN & TSON LLP

1999 Avenue of the Stars, Suite 1400
Los Angeles, California 90067

Telephone: (310} 785-4600
Facsimile: (310) 785-4601

E-mail: rdebodo law.com
ddiamon. %l.zhlaw.com
dgchang(@hhlaw.com

Attorneys for Plaintiff
VALEANT PHARMACEUTICALS
INTERNATIONAL
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27
28

. By

VERIFICATION OF COMPLAINT

I, Alexandra Coles, citizen of Canada, resident of Orange County, California,

and General Manager of Global Dennatoiogy at Valeant Phammaceuticals
, Case 8:08-cv-00449-AG-AGR  Document1  Filed 04/25/2008
International (“Vaﬁeant”), verify (1) that I am authorized t© make and sign the

Verified Complaint as set forth on behalf of Valeant in Valeant’s Verified’

Complaint; (ii) that the facts and matters set forth therein have been generated and

| assembled by authorized employees, counsel, and experts of Vaieant; and (iil) that T

am informed and believe that the facts and matters set forth therein are frue.
I verify under penalty of perjury that the foregoing statement is true and
correct.

Executed on April 23, 2008 in Milan, Ttaly.

Alexandra Coles
General Manager of Global Dermatology
Valeant Pharmaceuticals International

VERIFICATION
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